
 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  1 

BRATTLEBORO SELECTBOARD 
TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020 

COMMITTEE INTERVIEWS – 5:15PM 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – 5:30PM 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:15PM 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM, MUNICIPAL CENTER 
MINUTES 

 
Selectboard members present:  Tim Wessel, Elizabeth McLoughlin, and Daniel Quipp. 
 
Staff Present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland, Town Attorney 
Robert Fisher, Public Works Director Steve Barrett, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Assistant Fire Chief Leonard 
Howard III, Recreation & Parks Director Carol Lolatte, and Executive Secretary Jan Anderson. 
 
Media present:  BCTV staff and volunteers.  
 
Others present: Ian Goodnow, Melissa Clerk, Jeff Clark, Kate O’Connor, Anne E. Howes, Josh Davis, 

Rhianna Kendrick, ASL interpreters Janet Dickinson and Elizabeth Fox, and others who did not sign the 

attendance sheet. 

 

Acting Chair Tim Wessel called the meeting to order at 5:22pm.   He confirmed that the meeting was 

properly warned.  Town Manager Elwell noted that interviews of four applicants for the Tree Committee 

were scheduled to start at 5:15pm but none of the applicants appeared.  (AUTHOR’S NOTE:  This was a 

time when the Coronavirus/COVID-19 outbreak was first appearing.  The U.S. President and Vermont 

Governor declared federal and state emergencies on March 13 and people were instructed to practice 

social distancing and avoid congregating in groups.)  Elwell said that all Town committee and board 

meetings, with the exception of the Selectboard, had been cancelled for the near future so there was no 

urgency in appointing members to the committee.   

 

MOTION BY TIM WESSEL TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS CONTRACTS, THE 

NEGOTIATION OR SECURING REAL ESTATE PURCHASE OR LEASE OPTIONS, AND THE 

APPOINTMENT OR EMPLOYMENT OR EVALUATION OF A PUBLIC OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE, 

WHERE THE BOARD HAS DETERMINED THAT PREMATURE GENERAL PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE 

WOULD CLEARLY PLACE THE SELECTBOARD OR PEOPLE INVOLVED AT A SUBSTANTIAL 

DISADVANTAGE.  THE TOWN MANAGER, ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER, TOWN ATTORNEY, 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, AND SELECTBOARD MEMBER-ELECT IAN GOODNOW WERE 

INVITED TO ATTEND.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Acting Chair Wessel reconvened the meeting at 6:20pm. 

 

APPROVE MINUTES  

Wessel asked the Board to approve the minutes from the February 18, 2020 meeting.  There was no 

discussion. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO APPROVE MINUTES FROM THE FEBRUARY 18 

MEETING.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0.  

CHAIR’S REMARKS  
Acting Chair Wessel noted that with the outbreak of Coronavirus/COVID-19 in the area, people were 
feeling a great deal of emotional stress.  He asked people to stay calm, stay informed, not to panic, 
practice social distancing, take care of each other, and check on neighbors.  He said the Town would 
continue to operate and provide essential operations.  He reminded the public that “We are Vermont 
Strong.”  He thanked the first responders who were facing tremendous risks.   
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS  
None. 



 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  2 

 
SELECTBOARD COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Elizabeth Howes, a resident of the South Main Street neighborhood, suggested halting the expansion 

activities at the Drop-In Center and to relocate those activities to another location, such as the C.F. 

Church Building, or the area on Putney Road across from Hannaford’s Store, or to the Home Depot 

building, where the building of expanded housing units could take place.  She spoke of constant 

nuisances in the South Main Street neighborhood, such as cigarette butts littering both sides of the street, 

and suggested “liberating” the neighborhood to return it to a residential area.  She also asked to raise the 

awareness of pet health and provide pets with antibiotics during the current virus outbreak. 

 

AGENDA ADJUSTMENT – The Board agreed to adjust the agenda and move “Item A” under “New 

Business” (COVID-19/Coronavirus update) to this point in the meeting. 

 

COVID-19 (Coronavirus) 

(i) Update 

(ii) Representative Town Meeting 

(iii) Consideration of Other Actions or Potential Future Actions 

 

Town Manager Elwell said that much information about the COVID-19 virus, including inaccurate 

information, was circulating throughout the area, state, and nation.  He said that accurate and reliable 

information was essential so the Town was now posting information from various sources on its website, 

including links to the Vermont Department of Health, the National Centers for Disease Control, and the 

World Health Organization.  He said that Town updates were also included and would be provided daily, 

as was information for businesses and individuals with families.  He spoke about new developments 

today, including the closure of all Town facilities and suspension of parking enforcement.  He encouraged 

the public to visit the website regularly.  He assured members of the public that Town government would 

continue to operate.   

 

Fire Chief and Emergency Management Director Mike Bucossi spoke about information and emergency 

services that were in place and available to members of the public, including a plan being developed by 

Assistant Fire Chief Howard to assist with needs of people in high risk groups.  He said that a grassroots 

Homeless Response Team was being formed and lead by Rhianna Kendrick and the Groundworks 

Collaborative.  He said that steps were being implemented to minimize possible exposure to the first 

responders.  He spoke of actions that other organizations and agencies were taking to address the 

outbreak.  He assured the public there would be no interruption in emergency response throughout the 

town.   

 

Rhianna Kendrick, from Groundworks Collaborative, spoke about precautionary measures and 

procedures and some changes to operational programs that were being implemented at that agency and 

at the homeless shelter.  She said Groundworks was following state guidelines.  She said that the Drop-In 

Center had been closed and the population moved to the seasonal overflows shelter, which was now 

operating 24/7, to reduce the number of operational sites and remain fully staffed.  She said that Jenn 

Jacobs was initiating a survey to match volunteers with a voluntary management committee to assist with 

people with needs.  Kendrick directed people who wished to volunteer and people in need of support to 

visit the Town’s website and find the survey link under “Individuals and Families.”  She offered to provide 

information and assistance to people who may need medical services but did not have a primary care 

provider.   

 

Elwell spoke about the inevitable impact that the pandemic would have on businesses in this community 

and throughout the country.  He said that the Brattleboro Development Credit Corporation (BDCC) was 

leading a regional effort to communicate with local businesses and inform them of services and funding 



 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  3 

that may become available now that the federal and state governments had declared states of 

emergencies.  He said that the Board was being asked to take some early action on three matters, 

including (1) suspending the disconnection of water and sewer services [as Water and Sewer 

Commissioners] due to non-payment of fees, (2) authorizing recipients of funds from the Town’s Small 

Business Assistance Program (SBAP) to defer their loan payments until further notice, and (3) cancelling 

Representative Town Meeting (RTM).  He said that the Board was asked to cancel RTM scheduled on 

March 21 so as to abide by the Governor’s March 13 order limiting gatherings of people to a maximum 

number of 50.  He also asked the Board in its governmental oversight role to communicate to him any 

concerns or directions the Board may have on the many emergency actions and decisions being 

implemented so quickly in response to the emergency situation.  

 

Kate O’Connor, Executive Director of the Brattleboro Area Chamber of Commerce, thanked staff for 

concise and accurate information regarding the pandemic.  She stressed that the business community 

was anxious with the closure of bars, restaurants, theatres, and entertainment venues.  She said that the 

majority of businesses in town were small businesses that were facing temporary or permanent closure 

and were being forced to lay off employees.  She said that BDCC was stepping up and asked the Town to 

continue to be in conversation regarding immediate and future needs of the business community.   

 

There was some discussion by the Board.  Members thanked staff, especially the emergency 

management team, for their hard work and complete information in this difficult time, and they asked the 

community to continue to support their neighbors.  Quipp spoke of many concerns, including the closure 

of the library, economic impact on employees and business owners, and the effect of the crisis on the 

Town’s vulnerable populations.  He encouraged employees who were eligible for unemployment 

insurance to apply for benefits immediately and for people with specific needs to speak up.  He suggested 

that the Town, State and Federal governments be “flexible and nimble” with resources, including waiving 

fees or fines for late payments or delinquencies  He encouraged the community to support agencies that 

provided humanitarian services.   

 

Acting Chair Wessel asked the Board to consider taking action at this time on two of the items proposed 

by Town Manager Elwell.  There was no discussion. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO CANCEL REPRESENTATION TOWN MEETING 

SCHEDULED FOR MARCH 21, 2020, AT 8:30AM.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO ALLOW RECIPIENTS OF SMALL BUSINESS ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM LOANS TO DEFER LOAN PAYMENTS UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE.  MOTION CARRIED  

3-0. 

 

WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO CONVENE AS WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS.  MOTION 

CARRIED 3-0. 

 

COVID-19 (Coronavirus) – (continued)  Elwell said that under his COVID-19 update earlier in the meeting, 

the Board was asked to suspend the practice of shutting off water service due to non-payment of utility 

fees.  There was no discussion by the Board. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO SUSPEND UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE THE SHUT-OFF 

OF WATER SERVICE AS A CONSEQUENCE FOR NON-PAYMENT OF UTILITY FEES.  MOTION 

CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Authorize Purchase of Sewer Rodder.  Elwell said that the Board was asked to approve the replacement 

of a 2000 SRECO sewer rodder,  He said that the current sewer rodder needed to be replaced and the 

Department of Public Works was requesting utilization of the Town’s Sourcewell membership to purchase 



 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  4 

a new sewer rodder from J.F. McDermott Corporation in the amount of $61,824.16, as set forth in the 

memo dated February 19 from Highway/Utilities Superintendent Dan Tyler.  There was a brief discussion 

by the Board. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF A SEWER RODDER IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $61,824.16 FROM J.F. McDERMOTT CORPORATION.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO ADJOURN AS WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS.  

MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

COVID-19 (Coronavirus) 

(i) Update 

(ii) Representative Town Meeting 

(iii) Consideration of Other Actions or Potential Future Actions 

 

This matter was discussed earlier in the meeting. 

 

NO FURTHER ACTION TAKEN. 

 

Windham Regional Commission - Annual Report to Selectboard.  Wessel said that this matter would be 

removed from the agenda because Executive Director Chris Company, from Windham Regional 

Commission, was unable to attend this meeting.   

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

Skatepark – Bid Award.  Carol Lolatte, Recreation & Parks Director, and Jeff Clark, Chair of the BASIC 

(Brattleboro Area Skatepark Is Coming) Committee, were present.  Lolatte said that the Board was asked 

to award the bid for the construction of the skatepark at Living Memorial Park to Parker Construction, of 

Hardwick, Vermont, in the amount of $275,750.  She spoke about some elements of the bid, as set forth 

in her memo dated March 11, 2020.  She said that the project would also require trucking in fill, drainage 

stone, stone base, and stone for the swales and outfalls at an additional cost of $6,185, which would 

bring the cost of the project to $281,935.  She said that BASIC had raised $279,765 for the construction, 

which would leave a deficit of approximately $2,170.  She said that the Board was asked to authorize 

funds from the Capital Fund in an amount not to exceed $10,000 to cover the deficit and provide a small 

contingency fund for any issues that may arise during construction.  There was a brief discussion by the 

Board. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO AWARD THE BID FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

SKATEPARK AT LIVING MEMORIAL PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF $275,750 TO PARKER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND TO AUTHORIZE AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,000 TO BE EXPENDED 

FROM THE CAPITAL FUND BALANCE, IF NECESSARY.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Cemetery Maintenance – Bid Award.  Recreation & Parks Director Lolatte said that the Board was asked 

to award the bid for seasonal maintenance of Prospect Hill Cemetery and Morningside Cemetery to 

Independent Landscape & Property Management, of Newfane, Vermont, in the amount of $17,000, as set 

forth in her memo dated March 5, 2020.  There was a brief discussion by the Board, including occasional 

encampments and drug usage at the cemeteries. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO AWARD THE BID FOR SEASONAL MAINTENANCE OF PROSPECT 

HILL CEMETERY AND MORNINGSIDE CEMETERY TO INDEPENDENT LANDSCAPE & PROPERTY 

MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,000.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 



 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  5 

Route 142 Sidewalk + Royal Road Intersection Project – Authorization for Town Manager to Execute 

VTrans Grant Agreement.  Elwell said that the Board was asked to authorize him to execute a Grant 

Agreement with VTrans for the transportation project known as “Brattleboro STP BP19(17)” to provide 

pedestrian improvements between the Morningside Commons neighborhood and the new Hinsdale 

Bridge.  He said that the total project would cost about $535,000 and the Town’s share would be 

approximately $70,000, as set forth in his memo dated March 11.  There was a brief discussion by the 

Board.  

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN  TO AUTHORIZE TOWN MANAGER PETER ELWELL TO 

EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE VERMONT AGENCY OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 

THE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT KNOWN AS “BRATTLEBORO STP BP19(17)” TO PROVIDE 

PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS BETWEEN THE MORNINGSIDE COMMONS NEIGHBORHOOD AND 

THE NEW HINSDALE BRIDGE.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Procurement of Engineering Services Related to Stormwater Management.  Elwell said that the Board 

was asked to approve proposals from Stevens & Associates, of Brattleboro, for services that would 

enable the Town to maintain compliance with State of Vermont Stormwater regulations for a fee not to 

exceed $30,900, as set forth in the memo dated March 9 from Public Works Director Steve Barrett.  There 

was a brief discussion by the Board. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO APPROVE PROPOSALS FROM STEVENS & ASSOCIATES FOR 

STORMWATER RELATED SERVICES FOR A FEE NOT TO EXCEED $30,900.  MOTION CARRIED  

3-0. 

 

Financial Report – Monthly Report, February, Finance Department.  Town Manager Elwell provided a 

brief review of the February financial report that was prepared by Interim Finance Director Laurie Garland 

on March 4.  He then cautioned the Board that several financial matters had since changed due to the 

COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic which would affect revenues and expenditures.  He said that the 

collection of parking fees had been suspended so parking revenues would be significantly below what 

was previously anticipated, and the Utility Fund could be impacted if residents were not in a position to 

make payments on May 15.  He also said that unexpected emergency expenditures should be 

anticipated, and he noted that any COVID-19 expenditures would be carefully tracked in the event that 

grants and other funds became available when the crisis was over.  He said that with so many unknown 

factors looming at this time, the Town could end the fiscal year in a deficit position.  Elwell reassured the 

Board that the Town was in a solid financial position for the long-term.  There was some discussion by the 

Board.   

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

Acting Chair Wessel called a recess at 8:20pm.  He reconvened the meeting at 8:25pm. 

 

Groundworks Collaborative Project – Additional Town Grant from Program Income.  Assistant Town 

Manager Moreland said that the Board was asked to approve a grant in the amount of $100,000 from the 

Town’s Revolving Loan Fund (Program Income) to Groundworks Collaborative in support of the project 

located at 54/60 South Main Street to establish a permanent seasonal overflow shelter, as set forth in his 

memo dated March 9.  He spoke about the project, the seasonal overflow shelter, history of fundraising 

efforts, and the additional ongoing fundraising campaign.  Members from Groundworks, Josh Davis and 

Rhianna Kendrick, were present and spoke about the project.  Davis said that additional funds had been 

received since the date of Moreland’s memo, so the gap at this time was $478,000.  He said that the 

construction schedule was tight before the shelter would open in November because of the short 

construction season.  He said that upon completion of the project, the vast majority of the services 

provided would be located under one roof.  He said that meeting spaces and offices would convert at 

night into a shelter space with storage and beds.  He said that the health work management team would 

operate out of the upgraded building at 60 South Main Street.  He thanked the State and Town for their 



 
Selectboard Meeting 3-17-2020  6 

generous support and noted that community businesses and members had pledged $1.5 million toward 

the project which was a testament of support by the local community.  There was some discussion by the 

Board. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO APPROVE A GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000 

FROM THE TOWN’S REVOLVING LOAN FUND (PROGRAM INCOME) TO GROUNDWORKS 

COLLABORATIVE IN SUPPORT OF THE PROJECT LOCATED AT 54/60 SOUTH MAIN STREET TO 

ESTABLISH A PERMANENT SEASONAL OVERFLOW SHELTER.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Reallocate 2017 Homeland Security Grant Funds from Department of Public Safety – Accept and 

Appropriate, Fire Department.  Elwell said that the Board was asked to accept and appropriate a $1,600 

Reallocation of 2017 Funds as a State Homeland Security Grant from the Vermont Department of Public 

Safety to pay for two multipurpose devices (MPDs) used in rope applications during rescue work by the 

Fire Department, as set forth in the memo dated February 27 from Grants Manager Kim Ellison.  There 

was no discussion by the Board. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUINN TO ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE A $1,600 REALLOCATION OF 2017 

FUNDS AS A STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT FROM THE VERMONT DEPARTMENT OF 

PUBLIC SAFETY.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

Committee Matters 

(i) Tree Committee Appointment 

(ii) Announce Committee/Board Vacancies 

 

Elwell said that none of the applicants for the Tree Committee were able to attend the scheduled 

interviews at the start of the meeting, and because all meetings of Town committees had been 

suspended that the Board may postpone appointments to the Tree Committee until the COVID-19 

emergency had passed.  The Board agreed to postpone the appointment.  Elwell said that the Board was 

asked to announce vacancies on various boards and committees.  Wessel announced the following 

vacancies:  Tree Committee, ADA Committee, Arts Committee, Citizen Police Communications 

Committee (CPCC), Conservation Commission, Development Review Board Alternate, and Inspector of 

Lumber, Shingles and Wood. 

 

NO MOTION WAS OFFERED. 

 

Assignment of Motions on Articles -  For Representative Town Meeting on March 21, at 8:30am, 

Brattleboro Area Middle School Multipurpose Room.  Elwell said that this matter was moot after the 

cancellation of Representative Town Meeting earlier in this meeting. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

Schedule Annual Organizational Meeting – Monday, March 23, 2020 at 5:30pm.  Elwell said that this 

matter was moot after the cancellation of Representative Town Meeting earlier in this meeting. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

There was no further business. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO ADJOURN AT 8:45PM.  MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 

 

 

       ______________________________________ 
       Ian Goodnow, Clerk 


